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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 4{ |
Case No. 04-CV-2184W(AJB)

Plaintiff,
Vs,
INTERVENORS’
L. DONALD GUESS, et al., APPLICATION FOR INJUNCTIVE
RELIEF PURSUANT TO
Defendants. 26 U.S.C. § 6213(a)
BY FACSIMILE

COME NOW INTERVENORS CARL J. FLATLEY, JOAN M. COLLINS,
FRANK J. GRESKOVICH, II, MITCHELL L. COLLINS, DANIEL L. ORR II, BRUCE K.
FELDER, STEPHEN R. CORSELLO, JOAN R. WHEELWRIGHT, and WALTER B. HALL, by
their undersigned attorney, and hereby apply to the Court pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil
Procedure 65 for preliminary and permanent injunctive relief pursuant to 26 U.S.C. § 6213(a) to
restrain the United States from violating their statutory rights and those of hundreds of other
similarly situated persons. The basis for this application is the unprecedented and unwarranted

complaint for receivership filed by the United States in the instant proceeding. Because of the

Case No. 04-CV-2184W(AIB}
INTERVENORS® APPLICATION FOR INJUNCTIVE
RELIEF PURSUANT TO 26 U.S.C. § 6213(a)
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substantial, continuing, and irreparable harm being suffered by Intervenors and the several
hundred other similarly situated persons, Intervenors seek the immediate issuance of the following
orders:

1. Dissolve the Temporary Restraining Order issued in this case;

2. Withdraw the receivership imposed on the xélan Foundation and Doctors Benefit

Insurance Company;

3. Direct the United States to return forthwith all items seized from the xélan Foundation

and Doctors Benefit Insurance Company;

4. Dismiss with prejudice the complaint of the United States in Case No. 04-CV-
2184W(AIB). o

5. Award all costs and attorneys %ees necessitated by the actions of the United States in
Case No. 04-CV-2184W(AIB); and

6. Grant such other and further relief as it deems just and necessary to prevent further
injury by the United States to Intervenors, the several hundred similarly situated persons, the xélan
Foundation, and Doctors Benefit Insurance Company.

This application is based on the Counterclaim filed herewith, the accompanying
memorandum of points and authorities, the Declarations of Intervenors, and such other and
additional matters as the Court may consider at the hearing on this Application. A proposed Order

1s filed herewith.

Case No. (M4-CV-2184W(AIB)
INTERVENORS™ APPLICATION FOR INJUNCTIVE
]1 RELIEF PURSUANT TO 26 U.5.C. § 6213(2)
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Dated: November 24, 2004

Respectfully submitted,
MICHAEL C. DURNEY

mwm3

LAW QOFFICES OF MICHAEL C. DURNEY
1072 Thomas Jefferson Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20007

(202) 965-7744

FAX: 202 965-7744

D.C. Bar No. 111872

Attorney for Intervenors

Case No. 04-CV-2184W(AJB)
INTERVENORS' APPLICATION FOR INJUNCTIVE

iii RELIEF PURSUANT TO 26 U.5.C. § 6213(a)
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I QUESTIONS PRESENTED

1. Has the United States violated the rights of Intervenors by its failure to follow the
requirements of 26 U.S.C. § 6213(a)?

2. Does this violation of Intervenors’ rights warrant the issuance of injunctive relief pursuant
to 26 U.S.C. § 6213(a)?

3. Does this violation of Intervenors’ rights and its intended blocking of legal fees necessary
to provide an adequate defense, coupled with the substantial, continuing, and irreparable
harm to Intervenors, warrant the issuance of immediate injunctive relief pursuant to 26
U.S.C. § 6213(a)?

II. STATEMENT

The filing of the xélan Receivership action by the United States and the resulting freeze
and/or seizure of the assets of the xélan Foundation and Doctors Benefit Insurance Company
(“DBIC™), is unprecedented and unwarranted. In its compliant, the government claimed,
erroneously and without citing any authority, that the transactions into which Intervenors entered
with the xélan Foundation and DBIC are fraudulent. The contrary is true. Intervenors have
substantial legal authority that their dealings with the xélan Foundation and DBIC are proper, and
that the reported tax treatment of their charitable transactions and insurance policies is correct.

More important, however, is the clear violation by the government of the statutory rights
accorded Intervenors by 26, U.S.C. § 6213(a). By reason of that statute, the Intervenors are
entitled to receive a Notice of Deficiency from the Internal Revenue Service before any action is
commenced by the government to collect any tax. None of the Intervenors or any of the other
similarly situated persons have received a Notice of Deficiency with respect to the unasserted tax

liabilities that form the basis for this Receivership Proceeding. If the government sincerely

Case No. 04-CV-2184W(AIB)
INTERVENORS' APPLICATION FOR INJUNCTIVE
RELIEF PURSUANT TO 26 U.S.C. § 6213(a)
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believed that the collection of the undetermined taxes were in jeopardy, it could have made
jeopardy assessments of such taxes under 26 U.S.C. § 6861. However, as the government well
knows, there are significant procedural safeguards for taxpayers to protect against improvident or
baseless jeopardy assessments. 26 U.S.C. § 7429 provides for mandatory administrative and
judicial review of this extraordinary collection action by the government, where the burden of

proof is on the government to establish the necessity for collection before collection activity is

begun.

Here, the government baldly admits that it has not assessed any of the taxes in question.
(Complaint par. 32.) Rather than accord the legal remedies to which Intervenors are entitled, the
government filed an illegal end-run around 26 U.S.C. § 6213(a), and obtained a séizure of assets
in order to satisfy non-existent tax liabilities of Intervenors. One of the insidious aspects of ‘this
action by the government, which can not be taken as other than intentional, was a freeze on all
legal fees.! Prior to the seizure, legal fees were being paid by the xélan Foundation and DBIC to
defend both the entities and the medical professionals, including Intervenors, who participated in
their programs against the baseless assumptions that underlie the IRS investigation. The result of
the government’s action, if not immediately reversed by the Court, is that the government will be
able to proceed against Intervenors and the other similarly situated persons unimpeded by the legal

representation they had been provided by the xélan Foundation and DBIC.

! Following the seizure, counsel for Intervenors met with Stuart D. Gibson, lead counsel
for the government. Mr. Gibson was asked if the government would consent to the continuing
payment of legal fees in order to defend the affected parties. Mr. Gibson said he could not and
that it was a matter for the receiver and the Court. Thereafter, by letter hand-delivered to the
Assistant Attorney General of the Tax Division, Eileen J. O’Connor, on November 10, 2004,
counsel for Intervenors asked for a considered review of the propriety of the government’s case in
light of the substantial harm resulting to Intervenors and similarly situated persons. A copy of that
letter is attached hereto as Exhibit 14. In response to that letter, in a letter from Mr. Gibson dated
November 22, 2004, and received by counsel for Intervenors on November 24, 2004, it was stated
that the concerns expressed in the letter to Mrs. O’Connor should await action by the receiver or
the Court. It is clear from this that the government fully supports the harm that has befallen
Intervenors,

Case No, (4-CV-2184W(AIB)

INTERVENORS® APPLICATION FOR INJUNCTIVE
RELIEF PURSUANT TO 26 ULS.C. § 6213(a)
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Additionally, in the case of each Intervenor, the seizure has prevented them from (1)
receiving from the xélan Foundation or DBIC, as the case may be, a periodic payment to which
each Intervenor is legally entitled by contract to receive, or (2) continuing disability income
insurance coverage from DBIC to prevent a loss of such coverage and/or a forfeiture of policy
values. No allowance was made by the government that would enable either the xélan Foundation
or DBIC to continue necessary business operations and honor the commitments the two
organizations are legally obligated to make. Similarly, no provision was made by the government
to protect the interests of the Intervenors. The freeze and/or seizure of the assets the xélan
Foundation and DBIC by the United States in violation of 26 U.S.C. § 6213(a) has resulted in
substantial, continuing, and-irreparable harm to the Intervenors.

- - IIL. ARGUMENT

A. INTERVENORS ARE ENTITLED TO INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
UNDER 26 U.S.C. §6213(a)

26 U.S.C. § 6213(a) provides one of the few statutory exceptions to the Anti-Injunction
Act, 26 U.S.C. § 7241. As pertinent herein, the statute provides that the appropriate district court
may enjoin the Internal Revenue Service from collecting a tax before a Notice of Deficiency has
been sent to the taxpayer. A Notice of Deficiency enables a taxpayer to have the merits of his tax
liability litigated in the Tax Court without having to first pay the tax. 26 U.S.C. §§ 6212, 6213.
None of the Intervenors or any of the several hundred similarly situated doctors whose returns are
under examination have received a Notice of Deficiency with respect to their xélan transactions.
The xélan Receivership action filed by the government squarely violated the rights of Intervenors
and the other doctors by proceeding to collect from the xélan Foundation and DBIC non-existent
tax liabilities.

In its receivership complaint, the government claimed, without citing any authority, that

the transactions into which the Intervenors entered with the xélan Foundation and DBIC were

Case No. 04-CV-2184W(AIB)
INTERVENORS® APPLICATION FOR INJUNCTIVE
RELIEF PURSUANT T0O 26 U.S.C. § 6213(a)
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fraudulent. The contrary is true. Intervenors have substantial legal authority that their dealings
with the xélan Foundation and DBIC are proper, and that the reported tax treatment of their
charitable transactions and insurance policies is correct.
1. xélan Foundation

In the case of the xélan Foundation, the Internal Revenue Service stated in a letter dated
March 20, 1998, that the Foundation qualified as a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code (26 U.S.C. § 501(c)(3)). A copy of that determination letter is attached as
Exhibit 10. Subsequently, by letter dated May 6, 2002, the Internal Revenue Service confirmed
that the xélan Foundation was a publicly-supported charity and that contributors were entitled to a
deduction under Section 170 of the Internal Revenue Code (26 U.S.C. § 170) for contributions
made to it. A copy of that letter is attached as Exhibit 11. Additionally, each of the Intervenors
received a letter from counsel for the xélan Foundation at the time of their initial contribution
confirming the tax deductibility of their contributions. A representative letter, sent to Intervenor
Corsello, is attached as Attachment A to his Declaration. See Exhibit 7,

Additionally, the Internal Revenue Service continues to include the xélan Foundation in its
Publication 78, Cumulative List of Organizations described in Section 170(c) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986. Publication 78 is described by the Internal Revenue Service in the
introduction as a “list of organizations eligible to receive tax-deductible charttable contributions”.

The Intervenors made their contributions to the xélan Foundation knowing that once the
contributions were made, the contributions were under the sole control of the xélan Foundation.
While each of the Intervenors could give advice as to how distributions should be made, each
realized that the final determination as to distributions would be made by the xélan Foundation.
The Intervenors knew that they could not retrieve their contributions from the xélan Foundation.

As stated by Intervenor Wheelwright (Exhibit &, par. 8):

Case No. 04-CV-2184'W(AIB)
INTERVENORS' APPLICATION FOR INJUNCTIVE
RELIEF PURSUANT TO 26 U.5.C. § 6213(2)
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From the beginning of my involvement with the xélan Foundation, I understood that the
contributions I made were donations to a recognized charity and while I could express my
preferences for the distribution of that contribution, the xélan Foundation had the right to
distribute it as they saw fit. [ understood that I could never retrieve my contributions to the
Foundation, and I neither expected nor held any desire to do so.

Similarly, Intervenor Corsello stated (Exhibit 7, par. 7):

From the time we first contributed to the xélan Foundation, 1 understood that the assets we
donated became the property of the Foundation, and that my role was exclusively one of an
advisor. I understood that once the contribution was made, I relinquished all control over
those assets, and they would not be returned to me. I have never expected, requested or
received a refund of any portion of the assets donated to the xélan Foundation.

Additionally, attached to each of the Declarations of Intervenors Collins and Corsello are

Fund Advisor Statements which provide in part:

I certify that [ understand the nature of donor-advised funds and will
conduct activities which satisfy the Intemal Revenue Code. I understand that in
order to qualify as a deductible contribution for income tax purposes, the ownership
and custody of my donated funds and property will be fully relinquished to the
[name of donor advised account], a Donor Advised Fund of the xélan Foundation.

See Attachment A to Intervenor Joan M. Collins Declaration, Exhibit 2; Attachment B to
Intervenor Corsello Declaration, Exhibit 7.

In support of this unprecedented seizure of the assets of the xélan Foundation, the
government submitted two affidavits by government agents, one a postal inspector, and one a
revenue agent. No mention is made in the affidavit of the revenue agent with respect to the xélan
Foundation. The postal inspector states, however, that “it appears that xélan does not operate the
[Foundation] program is accordance with IRS regulations.” (See affidavit of Postal Inspector
Timothy D. France, par. 51.) The postal inspector makes no reference to the above-described
determination letters issued by the Internal Revenue Service to the xélan Foundation, nor to its
inclusion in Publication 78. The postal inspector makes no reference to the Fund Advisor
Statements which clearly set forth the charitable intent and understanding of the Intervenors. The
postal inspector does not mention that even if his unsupported statement were true, which it
categorically is not, Treasury Regulation §1.170A-9 (26 CFR §1.170A-9) specifically provides

that a donor may rely on the IRS determination “until notice of change of status of such

Case No. 04.CV-2184'W(AJB)
INTERVENORS" APPLICATION FOR INJUNCTIVE
RELIEF PURSUANT TO 26 U.5.C. § 6213(a)
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organization is made to the public (such as by publication of the Internal Revenue Bulletin).” No
change of status with respect to the xélan Foundation has been made by the Internal Revenue
Service. Again, the postal inspector makes no reference to this fact. In other words, even 1f the
unsupported opinion of the postal inspector regarding the entitlement of the x¢lan Foundation to
tax exempt status were true, there would be no additional tax liability of the Intervenors. In short,
there is absolutely nothing to support the claim by the government that additional taxes may be
owing with respect to contributions made by the Intervenors to the xélan F oundation.

2. Supplemental Disability Insurance

Intervenors Carl J. Flatley, Joan M. Collins, Frank J. Greskovich, 11, and Mitchell Collins
(no relation to Intervenor Joan M Collins) each obtained sqpplemental disability income .
insurz;nce coverage through xélan. Current insurance coverage is provided to Intervenors by
DBIC, a successor entity that is the target of the TRO freeze order and the injunction sought by the
government. All four Intervenors have suffered disabling illnesses or injuries and are entitled to
receive monthly benefit payments from DBIC by reason of their supplemental disability income
insurance coverage.

Intervenors Daniel L. Orr 1T and Bruce K. Felder similarly obtained supplemental disability
insurance coverage thorough xélan. One of the features of this insurance is that after coverage has
been maintained for seven consecutive years, an experience adjusted premium refund can be
requested. This refund is a retrospective premium adjustment that is common in many insurance
policies, and is based on the claims and expense experience of the particular insurance carrier. In
the event coverage is not maintained for seven years, all benefits under the supplemental disability
income insurance policy are forfeited.

In addition to preventing the payment of disability claims by DBIC, as outlined above, the

seizure prevents Intervenors Orr and Felder from maintaining their disability income insurance

Case No. 04-CV-2184W(AJB)
INTERVENORS' APPLICATION FOR INJUNCTIVE
RELIEF PURSUANT TO 26 U.S.C. § 6213(a)
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coverage. This would terminate their certificates of insurance coverage and cause a forfeiture of
approximately $1,242,571.34 in benefits in the case of Intervenor Orr and approximately
$211,114.51 in benefits in the case of Intervenor Felder. Furthermore, such termination would
eliminate valuable catastrophic claim benefits for Intervenor Orr in the amount of $4,452,000 and
for Intervenor Felder in the amount of $860,000, should either become catastrophically disabled
from being able to work in any occupation.

None of the Intervenors support the government’s position in this case, believe he or she
has been defrauded, and each strenuously objects to the actions taken by the government as being
violative of his or her rights under the DBIC disability income insurance coverage. At the time
Intervenors first obtained their supplerqental disability income insurance coverage through xélan,
each received a legal opinion from counsel for the xélan Supplemental Disability Trust (“Trust™)

which set forth the legal basis for the tax treatment of the premium payments made to obtain the

coverage for Intervenors. ?

The government’s position with respect to the disability insurance was set out in the
affidavit of a revenue agent who is stated to be a specialist in employee welfare benefit
plans. Nowhere is it asserted that this revenue agent is a specialist in disability insurance. This
revenue agent stated (affidavit of John L. Marien, par. 16a):

a.  First, the IRS is examining whether the xélan disability trust is providing
insurance at all, or whether it is simply a savings program...

The revenue agent continued {par. 16b):

b.  The IRS is also examining the limits on deductibility to the doctor’s subchapter
C corporation—and includability in the doctor’s taxable income—in the event it
determines that the xélan disability insurance is in fact providing insurance.

2 A representative sample of the legal opinion is attached hereto as Exhibit 12,
Additionally, attached as Exhibit 13 is a representative supplemental disability income insurance
policy issued by DBIC that provided coverage to Intervenors.

Case No, 04-CV-2184W(AJB)

INTERVENORS® APPLICATION FOR. INJUNCTIVE
RELIEF PURSUANT TO 26 US.C. § 6213(a}
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The revenue agent then claimed that because “steps have been taken to prevent me from obtaining

the information 1 require from doctors and third parties...,” he has been unable

... to determine whether xélan doctors are entitled to the tax benefits that
Guess and xélan have touted to them, and make it impossible for me to express a
final opinion now on these programs. (par. 17.)

Contrary to the revenue agent’s claim, Intervenors have provid‘ed all documents and
responses requested by the Internal Revenue Service with respect to their xélan programs.’
Moving beyond that point, however, the stark fact remains that this revenue agent, upon whose
assertions the government bases the freeze of DBIC and the consequent blocking of disability
payments and continuation of disability coverage to which Intervenors are entitled, has not yet
determined whether the insurance coverage offered by DBIC is POt what it purports to be. The
agent admits that the IRS is “examining” the ciisability insurance program and that he is unable
to express a final opinion as to its validity. This admission clearly demonstrates that since the
government hasn’t made up its own mind as to the merits of the case, it is impossible for it to
show that it is likely to succeed on these undetermined merits.

In each case,‘ the Intervenors believed they were buying disability insurance, did not think
they were establishing a savings account, knew that their experience refund would be forfeited if
they terminated the coverage before the end of seven years, and knew that this experience refund
would be subject to the claims and expenses of DBIC. See, e.g., Exhibit 1, Flatley Declaration,
pars. 9, 10, 11; Exhibit 2, Joan M. Collins Declaration, pars. 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12; Exhibit 3,
Greskovich Declaration, par. 5; Exhibit 4, Mitchell L. Collins Declaration, pars. 11, 12; Exhibit
5, Orr Declaration, pars. 12, 13, 14; Exhibit 6, Felder Declaration, pars. 8,9, 10. The

government has shown nothing other than unsupported speculation to counter these facts.

? See, e.g., Exhibit 1, Flatley Declaration, par. 17; Exhibit 2, Joan M. Collins Declaration,
pars. 18, 19; Exhibit 3, Greskovich Declaration, pars. 14, 15; Exhibit 4, Mitchell L. Collins
Declaration, pars. 14,15 ; Exhibit 5, Orr Declaration, pars. 16, 17, 18; Exhibit 6, Felder
Declaration, par. 3; Exhibit 7, Corsello Declaration, pars. 11, 12, 13; Exhibit 8, Wheelwright
Declaration, par. 3; Exhibit 9, Hall Declaration, pars. 4,5.

Case No. 04-CV-2134W(AJB)
INTERVENORS™ APPLICATION FOR INJUNCTIVE
RELIEF PURSUANT TO 26 US.C. § 6213(a)
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B. INTERVENORS ARE ENTITLED TO IMMEDIATE INJUNCTIVE
RELIEF

The seizure of the assets by the government has deprived Intervenors of either disability
income or annuity payments that provided them with substantial living support. These
unwarranted financial deprivations were then exacerbated by the prohibition of legal fees by the
government that provided Intervenors with legal counsel to defend the IRS investigation of their
xélan transactions. The final blow was that Intervenors have been denied their statutory right to

litigate whatever tax liability the government ultimately decides to assert without first paying the

tax.
The Ninth Circuit, in Jenson v. IRS, 835 F.2d 196 (9™ Cir. 1987), made clear that in such

circumstances, Intervenors are entitled to injunction relief. In Jensen, the Court held that when the

IRS fails to comply with 26 U.S.C. § 6213(a), the loss of the right to litigate a t'ax Hability without

first paying the tax, coupled with severe monetary deprivation, warrants injunctive relief. As

stated by Court:

. .. Moreover, the alleged [**6] failure by the IRS to give Jensen notice
of the deficiency deprived him of his opportunity to challenge the claimed
deficiency in the tax court without having to pay the tax. See Abrams v.
Commissioner, 814 F.2d 1356, 1357 [*199] (9th Cir. 1987) (tax court
lacked jurisdiction to hear a taxpayer's petition for redetermination of
taxes because no notice of deficiency was given). This deprivation of the
opportunity to litigate a tax liability before paying the tax can cause
substantial hardship to a taxpayer. Granquist v. Hackleman, 264 F.2d 9,
14 (9th Cir. 1959). Such a deprivation is also "out of keeping with the
thrust of the Code." Laing, 423 U.S. at 176. n2

nl Jensen was apparently allowed to exempt $ 300 per month from the
levy under regulations made pursuant to 26 U.S.C. § 6334(a)(9).

n2 The court is aware that monetary harm does not usually establish
irreparable harm in analyzing equitable grounds for injunctive relief. See
Sampson v. Murray, 415 U.S. 61, 88-92, 39 L. Ed. 2d 166, 94 S. Ct. 937
(1974). This case, however, includes allegations not only of severe
monetary deprivation, but loss of a valuable administrative remedy as
well.

835 F.2d at 198-9.

Case No. 04-CV-21 B4'W(AJB)
INTERVENORS' APPLICATION FOR INJUNCTIVE
RELIEF PURSUANT TO 26 US.C. § 5213(2)
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In its decision remanding the case to the district court, the Ninth Circuit made clear that the
failure to provide a Notice of Deficiency establishes jurisdiction to hear a claim for injunctive
relief. 835 F.2d at 198. The Court further held that the issuance of the injunction will then turn
on whether equitable grounds for relief exist, citing Cool Fuel, Inc. v. Connett, 685 F.2d 309 (9™
Cir. 1982). Id.

In Cool Fuel, equitable relief was denied as it was found that the taxpayer could sue for a
refund of the seized funds. 685 F.2d 309, 313-14, That remedy is unavailable in the instant case
as Intervenors and the other similarly situa'ted persons have no idea what their tax liabilities are
and w.}'lat to sue for. The government has seized millions of dollars held by the xélan Foundation
apd DBIC with no differentiation or calculation of tax other that the fanciful assumption of
Revenue Agent John L. Marien th,at each doctor improperly déducted or excluded $100,000 per
year from their taxable income. Marien Affidavit, par. 33. The refund suit procedure present in

Cool Fuel is clearly unavailable in this case.

In Weinberger v. Romero-Barcelo, 456 U.S. 305, (1982), the Supreme Court stated:

It goes without saying that an injunction is an equitable remedy. It "is not a remedy
which issues as of course,”" Harrisonville v. U.S. Dickey Clay Mfg. Co., 289 U.S. 334, 338
{33 8. Ct. 602, 603, 77 L. Ed. 1208] (1933), or "to restrain an act the injurious consequences
of which are merely trifling.” Consolidated Canal Co. v. Mesa Canal Co., 177 U.S. 296, 302
[20 8. Ct. 628, 630, 44 L. Ed. 777] (1900). An injunction should issue only where the
intervention of a court of equity "is essential in order effectually to protect property rights
against injuries otherwise irremediable.” Cavanaugh v. Looney, 248 U.S. 453, 456 [39 S. Ct.
142, 143, 63 L. Ed. 354] (1919). The Court has repeatedly held that the basis for injunctive
relief in the federal courts has always been irreparable injury and the inadequacy of legal
remedies. [citations omitted.]

Here, Intervenors are entitled to the equitable relief sought. The government has established
no reasonable basis for its position that Intervenors have underpaid their tax. The government has
deprived Intervenors and other similarly situated persons of valuable statutory rights and caused
them substantial, continuing, and irreparable harm. They have no legal remedy available to

correct this manifest injustice.

Case No. (4-CV-2184W(AIB)
INTERVENORS' APPLICATION FOR INJUNCTIVE
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1 IV. CONCLUSION
2
3 The facts presented herein clearly establish that the government’s unprecedented and
4 unwarranted action against the Intervenors, the xélan Foundation, and DBIC must be enjoined
5 | immediately. Intervenors have sustained substantial, continuing, and irreparable harm, as well as
6 | deprivation of a fundamental right in the determination of their tax liabilities. Their legal counsel
7| and assistance has been cut off. They have been vilified in press releases and court filings as
81, : . '
having engaged in fraudulent and illegal activities. The actions of the government must be
9 .
stopped. y
10
11
12 Dated: November 24, 2004 . Respectfully submitted,
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

‘ SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF- CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Plaintiff,
Case No. 04-CV-2184W (AJB)

V.

DECLARATION OF
CARL J. FLATLEY

L. DONALD GUESS, et al.

Defendants.

1. My name is Carl J. Flatley and I am a resident of Denedin, Flo;ida.

2. lam aretired doctor of dental surgery (DDS), with a specialization jn endodontics.

3. Ihave been a member of xélan, the Economic Association of Health Professionals, since
1975, when I first used xélan to ;xssist in my moncy managemeit and cstatc planning,.

4, 1 first learned of xélan at a seminar held in Sarasota, Florida, sometime around 1975.

5. Ipurchased through xélan a disability insurance policy from Reassure America in the mid
1970’s. My corporation purchased supplemental disability insurance through xélan
beginning in the late 1990’s. |

6. 1purchased the supplemental disability coverage because I could not find a source for

adequate primary disability policies.
EXHIBIT 1







